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STATE OF NEW YORK
SUPREME COURT: COUNTY OF ERIE

DENNIS F. CHAPMAN,
3715 Woodhaven Circle
Hamburg, NY 14075

Gf1

. -vs-

COUNTY OF ERIE
95 Franklin Street
Buffalo, NY 14202

FILE/.) SUMMONS
Plaintiff 06/27120111 16'20'33

, ERIE COUNTY CLERK
RePT ~ 11093582
I 2011002574 INDEX NO. 20111-----

Defendant.

TO THE ABOVE-NAMED DEFENDANT:

YOU ARE HEREBY SUMMONED to appear and answer the Verified
Complaint attached hereto, in this action, by serving a copy ofyour Answer on the
Plaintiff's Attorney within twenty (20) days after the service of this Summons, exclusive
of the day of service (or within thirty (30) days after the service is completed if this
Summons is not personally delivered to you-within the County of Erie, State ofNew
York); and in case of your failure to appear and answer, judgment pursuant to CPLR
Section 3001 will be taken against you by default for the relief demanded in the
Complaint attached hereto.

Plaintiff designates Erie County as the place of trial. The basis of venue is the
residence of the Plaintiff and the place of business ofthe Defendant, which are both
within the County of Erie and State ofNew York.

Dated: June 27,2011

Williamsville, NY 14221
Attorney(s) for the Plaintiff
(716) 565-2000
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STATE OF NEW YORK
SUPREME COURT: COUNTY OF ERIE

DENNIS F. CHAPMAN
3715 Woodhaven Circle .
Hamburg, NY 14075

Plaintiff,

-vs-

COUNTY OF ERIE
95 Franklin Street
Buffalo, NY 14202

Defendant.

AGf'~~' L ! D. tBNs &fJ~(j(J~E(JfNfA~

, ,JUN ? f tdll........

VERIFIED COMPLAINT

INDEX NO. 20111 _

Dennis F. Chapman, the Plaintiff herein, by his attorney, Jeffrey Marion,
Esq., as and for his Verified Complaint, does allege:

1. This is a plenary action for a declaratory judgment pursuant to CPLR
Section 3001.

2. The purpose is for ajudgment ofthis Court declaring the recent
amendment ofthe Erie County Charter, Section 201, providing for the reduction of
the number of districts and legislation for the Erie County Legislature, from fifteen
(15) to eleven (11) as illegal and in violation ofNew York State law.

I. PARTIES:

3. Plaintiff is a resident ofthe County ofErie and State ofNew York,
residing at 3715 Woodhaven Circle in the Town ofHamburg

4. The Defendant County ofErie is the governmental entity which
includes the Erie County Legislature and the Erie County Executive.

5. Both such branches of county government did coordinate and assist
in the enactment ofthe approval ofa referendum which purports to reduce the size
of the Erie County Legislature from fifteen (15) district legislators to eleven (11)
district legislators to be effective January 1,2012.
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Other Possible Parties

6. No other parties have a direct interest in the outcome ofthis case,
such that they are necessary parties to this legal action.

7. If there are any other interested parties, while not being "necessary"
parties, they may always be joined under the joinder provision ofCPLR, Sections
1001 and/or 1002.

II. JURISDICTION:

8. Under the provisions ofCPLR Section 3001, Supreme Court has the
authority to enter a judgment declaring the rights ofparties in such a legal action.

9. In addition, in the challenge to the legality of a legislative enactment,
including one submitted to a mandatory referendum by the voters, the proper
procedure to challenge its legality is by an action for a declaratory judgment.

III. VENUE:

10. The Plaintiffand the Defendant are residents ofor are situated
within Erie ~ounty.

11. In addition, no other persons or entities outside ofErie County have
a direct interest in the outcome of this case.

IV. STANDING TO SUE:

12. The Plaintiff, as a resident ofthe County ofErie and a registered
voter, is affected by the enactment ofthe subject local law in issue.

13. As a citizen ofand registered voter in Erie County, the Plaintiffhas
standing to commence this action for a declaratory judgment as to the legal status
ofthe question, as it purports to amend the Charter ofErie County.
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· V. LEGAL ISSUES PRESENTED:

14 By the enactment ofthe 2010 reduction in the size of the Erie
County Legislature, the Defendant County ofErie is attempting the second such
reduction within an eight (8) year period.

15. The New York State MunicipalHome Rule Law (hereinafter
"MHRL"), Section 10(1)(a)(13)(f), provides that no local legislative body may
"re-structure" itself more than once in any decade.

16. It is unquestioned that a reduction in the size ofa legislative body is
a "restructuring" within the meaning ofMHRL, Section 10.

17. Similarly, to enact a second "restructuring" by reducing the size of
the Erie County Legislature for the second time within a ten (10) year period is a
clear violation ofthat prohibition contained in MHRL, Section 10.

18. For that reason, the Court isbeing asked to enter a judgment
pursuant to CPLR, Section 3001, declaring that the enactment ofthe 2010 local
law purporting to reduce the size of the Erie County Legislature from fifteen (15)
to eleven (11) is a violation ofMHRL, Section 10, and is thus null and void.

19. The Court should further declare that the existing charter provision
providing for a fifteen (15) member County Legislature remains in effect and that
elections for the county legislature, scheduled for 2011, shall proceed on the basis
of fifteen (15) such legislative districts.

Background History

20. The original Charter ofErie County, enacted and approved in1967,
provided in Article 2, Section 201 for the election of a twenty (20) member
County Legislature, from twenty (20) legislative districts.

21. By a local law approved by a referendum ofthe voters ofErie
County in June, 1983, Section 201 ofthe Charter was amended to provide for a
seventeen (17) member legislature with seventeen (17) legislative districts.

3



.,'
, ..

22. In 2002, such section ofthe Charter was again amended by a voter-
approved referendum, whereby the number oflegislators and legislative districts
was reduced to fifteen (15), effective for the 2003 elections.

23. Each such "restructuring" ofthe Erie County Legislature took place
more than ten (10) years after the previous restructuring.

Recent History

24. In March, 2010, the Erie County Legislature approved a local law
for submission to the voters ofErie County, for their approval at the 2010
November general election.

25. Such local law, amending Section 201 ofthe Erie County Charter,
provided for yet another reduction in the size ofthe County Legislature (from
fifteen (15) to eleven (11), effective for the November, 2011 local election and
with terms to commence January 1,2012, was approved by the voters.

26 Ifupheld, such law will require the redistricting of the Erie County
Legislature for the 2011 election into eleven (11) legislative districts at the same
time ofthe constitutionally required reapportionment for the full general election,
as based upon the 2010 U.S. Census population data.

27. Thus, this Court's determination ofthe legality (or lack thereof) of
the most recent reduction in the size ofthe County Legislature, will determine the
number ofdistricts into which the County must then be redistricted and then
apportioned.

28. Section 1O(l)(l3)(f) ofthe Municipal Home Rule prohibits any
restructuring of a local legislative body more than "once in each decade".

29. The common understanding and dictionary definition ofa decade is
a period often (10) years.

30. The obvious intent ofthe statute - which applies to all local
legislative bodies without exception - is to prevent swings in the structure of a
legislative body, back and forth over short periods oftime.

31. It obviously was meant to prevent significant and recurring changes
in a local government's "structure" and to prevent a new majority coming into
control and making radical change - or changes - over a short period oftime.

4



32. The key element of the statutory intent is to ensure the particular
governmental structure's stability, without wild swings between different forms of
government structure.

33. The statute provides for at least a ten (10) year period (a decade)
under which a legislative body must operate - once a change in its structure has
been made (and whatever that change might be).

34. One could see it as giving a structural change the needed time for
those governed to see how the change works.

35. The ten (10) year prohibition on a second change in a legislative
body's structure has been held by the Courts to be mandatory.

36. Any prohibited restructuring enacted by a legislative body within a
ten (10) year period - even one subsequently "approved" by the voters at a
referendum - must be invalidated as a violation ofthe ten (I) year prohibition
contained in MHRL, Section 10.

37. In the present case, the facts are undisputed.

38. The last restructuring ofthe Erie County Legislature occurred in
2002, to be effective at the 2003 general election.

39. The second (and most recent) restructuring took place in 2010, to be
effective at the 20 I I general election.

40. Since there is only an eight (8) year period between the 2003 and the
20 I 1 restructuring, the most recent "reduction" ofthe Erie County Legislature
from fifteen (15) to eleven (11) was illegal as a violation ofMHRL Section 10.

41. The Court should therefore enter a judgment declaring such
enactment null and void and further, that the previous provision of Section 201 of
the Erie County Charter, providing for a fifteen (15) member and fifteen (15)
district body remains in effect, for the 20 I1 election calendar.

42. No previous request has been made to any Court for the relief sought
herein.
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WHEREFORE, Plaintiffrespectfully requests that the Court enter a
judgment, pursuant to CPLR, Section 3001:

1. Declaring that the enactment ofthe 2010 local law which purports to
amend Section 201 ofthe Erie County Charter, constitutes a second restructuring
within a decade, in violation ofMHRL, Section 10; and

2. Declaring that such purported reduction ofthe Erie County
Legislature from fifteen (15) members and districts to eleven (11) members and
districts was illegal and was and is null and void; and

3, Declaring that Section 201 ofthe Erie County Charter, thus does
continue to legally provide for a fifteen (15) member and fifteen (15) district
legislative body; and

4. Declaring that the 2011 election for the Erie County Legislature will
proceed on the basis of a fifteen (15) member and fifteen (15) district legislative
body; and

5. Granting such other, further and different relief, as may appear to the
Court to be just and proper.

DATED: June 27, 20U
Buffalo, New York

Marion, Esq.
=e;;o:the Plaintiff

17 Beresford Court
Williamsville, NY 14221
(716) 565-2000
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VERlFICATION:

STATE OF NEW YORK)
COUNTY OF ERIE . ) ss.:

DENNIS F; CHAPMAN being duly sworn deposes and says that he
is the Plaintiff in this action; that he has read the foregoing COMPLAINT and
knows the contents thereof; that the same is true to the knowledge of deponent,
except as to the matters therein stated to be alleged on information and belief, and
that as to those matters he believes it to be true.

Sworn to before me this
2- -r"day of June, 2011

~f WU;'1b
Notary Public I

ANDRE;~ L WE;N~NGEft

Nolary Publlc • Slale 01New York
Fleg.No. 01I1'fEtJ131214
Q\.aiiliGd in Erie C"!int'i

My Com~i~s;o" Expires J.l.:j1-13
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